
From: ORR Jim * DEQ
To: carl.purdy@intertek.com; Brad.Reisinger@Quarterra.com
Cc: SCHATZ Jeff * DEQ; ORR Jim * DEQ
Subject: DEQ NFA for Former Firestone LUST 26-94-0026
Date: Tuesday, December 17, 2024 9:31:35 AM
Attachments: 12-17-2024 26-94-0026 Former Firestone Final NFA.pdf

image001.png

Please call if you have any questions.
 
Thank You kindly                                            
Jim Orr R.G. 
DEQ Northwest Region
700 NE Multnomah St.,  Suite 600
Portland, Oregon 97232
503-961-2647 Cell Phone                                          
jim.orr@deq.oregon.gov                                     
 
Someday, I hope to be the person that my dogs believe I am

 

 

 
Useful DEQ Links:
State of Oregon: Department of Environmental Quality

Oregon DEQ: Land Quality - Environmental Cleanup Site Information (ECSI) Database
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Department of Environmental Quality 
Northwest Region 


700 NE Multnomah Street, Suite 600 
Tina Kotek, Governor Portland, Oregon 97232 


 503-229-5263 
Fax 503-229-6945 


         TTY 711 


December 17, 2024, via electronic delivery 


Brad Reisinger,  
Vice President Quarterra 
1325 4th Ave.   
Seattle, Washington 98101 


RE: No Further Action Determination 
Former Firestone #3561, 815 West Burnside Street, Portland, Oregon 
LUST No. 26-94-0026 


Brad Reisinger: 


The Oregon Department of Environmental Quality (DEQ) has completed a review of the available information for 
the former Firestone #3561 property, including the reports titled Site Assessment Report dated January 31, 2022, and 
Technical Memorandum-Site Assessment Supplement dated July 25, 2023, which were submitted to DEQ by 
Professional Service Industries, Inc. (PSI) on your behalf. The former Firestone #3561 property address is 15 NW 
Park Avenue (formerly 815 West Burnside Street), Portland, Oregon, Tax Lot 10600 on Multnomah County Map 
1N1E34CB.  


DEQ has determined that remedial actions to address environmental contamination at the Site are complete, and no 
further action is required. This determination is a result of our evaluation and judgment based on the DEQ 
regulations and the facts as we now understand them, including the following, and as more fully described in DEQ's 
Staff Memo dated November 25, 2024: 


• An automotive fueling station existed at the Site from approximately 1932 until approximately 1969, when the
Site was redeveloped as the former Bridgestone/Firestone automobile service facility and operated until
approximately 2017. The historically existing structures of the fueling station were removed in approximately
1969.


• From 1994 to 2020, eight Underground Storage Tanks (USTs) were decommissioned by removal from the
Site. During the excavation and decommissioning events, approximately 212 tons of soil were excavated and
removed from the Site. In 2019, the Site began redevelopment as an apartment building with associated
underground parking. In approximately 2021, the Amara Apartments were completed at the Site. During the
development, construction of the underground parking area required the excavation of the complete footprint
of the lot to a depth of 28 feet bgs. Groundwater is present at depths of 22 to 25 feet and was not encountered
during the construction and soil excavation.


• At the final excavation depth, the vertical extent of the residual contaminated soil in the southeastern corner of
the Site was observed and measured to extend from approximately 10 to 28 feet bgs, which puts such soils at
depths unlikely to be encountered by residents or employees. The horizontal extent of residual contamination
was observed to extend into City of Portland Right of Way, approximately 12 feet west and 11 feet north from
the Site's southeast corner.


• The Site and adjacent property are currently and likely to be used for residential and commercial purposes. The
City of Portland zones the site Central Commercial (CX).


• Oregon Water Resources Department records were searched to locate all wells within a 0.25-mile radius of
the Site. Wells slightly beyond the radius were included due to the close vicinity of those wells to the radius
search area. The well search identified 405 wells within the radius search area. Of the identified wells, 60
were listed for water use, 319 for geotechnical purposes, and 26 as monitoring wells. Individual uses of the 60
water wells included industrial, injection, dewatering, and other uses such as air conditioning, heat exchange,
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water testing, observation, and a community well. Most water wells were constructed in the 1940s and 1950s, 
except for dewatering wells (installed 2017 to 2019). The two closest wells are about 150 feet south and 270 
feet southwest of the Site. The uses for these wells are industrial and heat exchange, respectively. The 
recorded depth to static groundwater in the wells is 31 feet bgs and 40 feet bgs, respectively. Based on the 
distance and use of the two closest wells, DEQ does not consider the wells identified within a 0.25-mile radius 
as receptors for potential residual contamination from the Site. The City of Portland is the site's source of 
drinking water..  


• The Site has no surface water bodies, and the Willamette River is approximately 0.5 miles west. The Site is
mainly covered with structures and paving. No Ecological habitat is present.


• Residual soil contamination is capped at a depth and unlikely to be encountered by site residents or
employees. There is a low probability of exposure to construction and excavation workers at the site, adjacent
sidewalks, and rights-of-way. Volatilization to indoor and outdoor air pathways is a potentially complete
pathway, but the ventilation system installed in the sub-grade parking garage mitigates the risk of vapor
intrusion.


• Residual soil contamination does not pose unacceptable risks to future residents, employees, construction
workers, or excavation workers.


• The City of Portland Bureau of Environmental Services was contacted with the findings of the Staff Report
regarding residual contamination in sidewalks adjacent to the Site. No comments were provided.


Based on the available information, the soil, and groundwater at the Site are currently protective of public health and 
the environment in accordance with Oregon Administrative Rules 340-122-0205 through 340-122-0360. The Site 
requires no further action unless new or previously undisclosed information becomes available, changes in site 
development or land and water uses occur, or more contamination is discovered. DEQ will update the Your DEQ 
Online database to reflect this decision. 


This letter only applies to the release(s) discussed above. If any contaminated media is encountered in the future, it 
must be handled and disposed of in accordance with local, state, and federal regulations. 


A copy of the Site supporting documents/reports and DEQ's Staff Memo supporting this No Further Action decision 
can be viewed at https://ormswd2.synergydcs.com/HPRMWebDrawer/Record/6837484. DEQ recommends keeping 
a copy of the documentation associated with this remedial action with the permanent facility records. If you have 
any questions, please contact Jim Orr at 503-961-2647 or jim.orr.@deq.oregon.gov. 


Sincerely, 


Amanda Wozab, Manager 
NWR Region Cleanup Section 


Attachments:  
Figures and Tables from the Administrative Record Staff Report 


cc: Jim Orr, DEQ 
Jeff Schatz, DEQ 
Carl Purdy, Intertek PSI 
YDO LUST File No. 26-94-0026 



https://ormswd2.synergydcs.com/HPRMWebDrawer/Record/6837484

mailto:jim.orr.@deq.oregon.gov



































		December 17-2024 26-94-0026-Firestone FINAL NFA.pdf

		December 17, 2024,       via electronic delivery



		DECP 24 7600  10-2-2024 Firestone 26-94-0026-Figures and Tables for Staff Memo.pdf

		Tables 1-4 for Staff Memo

		Figure 4- Addl Site Characterization Report - June 13, 2000 for Staff Memo

		Table 1 for Staff Memo

		Tables 5 and 6 for Staff Memo










